
UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO URT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO:

18 U.S.C. 5 371
8 U.S.C. 1 1324(a)(1)(A)(v)(l)
18 U.S.C. 5 982(a)(6)

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

YOSANDM  PIEDRA VASQUEZ and
YO EL DE M O YA LOZADA,

Defendants.

/

INDICTM ENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Indictm ent:

The lmmigration and Nationality Act (ûû1NA'') govenzed the immigration laws of

the United States.

Pursuant to the INA, non-citizens of the United States Cçaliens'') were not penuitted

to penuanently reside in the United States unless they were a lawful permanent resident (''LPR'').

Pursuant to the Cuban Adjustment Act (ttCAA''), an alien could immediately adjust

his/her status to that of a LPR, regardless of his/her country of citizenship, if the alien was married

to a Cuban citizen and m et other requirements.

4. United States Citizenship and lmmigration Services (CEUSCIS'') was an agency of

the United States Departm ent of Homeland Security and was charged with processing applications

for immigration benefits that aliens subm it seeking lawful status in the United States.
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An Application to Register Penuanent Residence or Adjust Status (CtDHS Fonu

1-485'5) was the application used by an alien seeking to adjust his/her status in the United States to

that of a LPR.

COUNT 1

Conspiracy to Defraud the United States

(18 U.S.C. 5 371)

Paragraphs l through 5 of the General Allegations of this Indictment are realleged

and incom orated by reference as though fully set fol'th herein.

Beginning in or around January 2002, and continuing through in or around

February 201 2, the exact dates being unkflown to the Grand Jury, in M iam i-Dade County and

Broward County, in the Southena District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and
YOEL DE M OYA LOZADA,

did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with each other and other

persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury to defraud the United States, that is, to anunge

fraudulent marriages for the purpose of interfering with and obstructing USCIS in its

adm inistration of the imm igration laws of the United States.

PURPOSE OF Tl.R  CPNSPIRACY

lt was the purpose of the conspiracy for the defendants and their co-conspirators to

unlawfully enrich them selves and to obtain im m igration benetits by interfering and obstntcting

USCIS in its administration of the immigration laws of the United States.

M ANNER AND M EANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

The m anner and m eans by which the defendants and their co-conspirators sought to

accomplish the purpose of the conspiracy included, among other things, the following:
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YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and YOEL DE MOYA LOZADA arranged

fraudulent m arriages between non-cuban aliens and Cuban citizens to fraudulently qualify the

non-cuban aliens for im migration benefits, including LPR status in the United States.

YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and YOEL DE MOYA LOZADA

demanded payment from the non-cuban aliens for arranging the fraudulent marriages.

YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and YOEL DE MOYA LOZADA directed

the non-cuban aliens who entered into the fraudulent marriages to file fraudulent DHS Form 1-485

applications seeking LPR status as the spouse of a Cuban citizen under the CAA .

OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiraey, and to accomplish the pup ose thereof
, the defendants and

their co-conspirators com mitted and caused to be comm itted, in the Southenz Distdct of Florida,

and elsewhere, at least one of the following overt acts, among others:

On or about January 23, 2002, YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ marlied

d1J.A.G.'' a non-cuban alien, in M iam i-Dade County, Florida.7

8. On or about April 2006, YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ married

iGN .E.M .'' a non-cuban alien, in M iami-Dade County, Florida.

On or about May 17, 2008, YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ manied

EIC.R.R.K .'' a non-cuban alien, in Broward County, Florida.5

On or about June 4, 2008, YOSANDRA PIEDM  VASQUEZ married

ECP.A.G.G.'' a non-cuban atien, in M iam i-Dade County, Florida.

On or about June 27, 2008, YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ married

ACM .A.S.L.'' a non-cuban alien, in Broward County, Florida.

3
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On or about March 19, 2009, YOSANDM  PIEDM VASQUEZ maMed

tCF.A .G.C.'' a non-cuban alien, in Georgia.

On or about June 15, 2009, YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ married

EEL.C.D.P.'' a non-cuban alien, in Broward County, Flolida.

On or about September l7, 2009, YOSANDM  PIEDM  VASQUEZ married

ttG.M .'' a non-cuban alien, in Georgia.

On or about July 28, 2010, YOSANDRA PIEDM  VASQUEZ manied

EGN .F.R.F.'' a non-cuban alien, in M iam i-Dade County, Florida.

In or around October 201 1, YO EL DE M OYA LOZADA asked ç&G.M .F.'' if he

knew anyone who needed papers and gave G.M .F. his phone number, in Georgia.

ln or around October 2011, YOEL DE M OYA LOZADA told G.M .F. that his

cousin could help him get imm igration papers in exchange for m oney, in Georgia.

On or about February 24, 2012, YOSANDM  PIEDM  VASQUEZ married

G.M .F., a non-cuban alien, in Georgia.

On or about February 24, 2012, YOEL DE M OYA LOZADA took photographs

of YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and G.M .F. together to make it appear that they were in a

legitimate marriage, in Georgia.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 37 l .

COUNT 2

Conspiracy to Encourage and lnduce an Alien to Reside Unlawfully in the United States

(8 U.S.C. 5 1324(a)(1)(A)(v)(I))

Begilm ing in or around January 2002, and continuing through in or around Febnlary 2012,

the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in M iam i-Dade County and Brow ard County, in
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the Southel'n Distlict of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and
YOEL DE M OYA LOZADA,

did knowingly and intentionally combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with each other and

other persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to comm it an offense against the United

States, that is, knowingly encouraging and inducing an alien to reside in the United States,

knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that such residence is and will be in violation of law,

in violation of Title 8, United States Code, Section 1324(a)(1)(A)(iv)', a1l in violation of Title 8,

United States Code, Section l324(a)(1)(A)(v)(l).

FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS

The allegations contained in this Indictm ent are hereby re-alleged and incorporated

by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of Am erica of certain

property in which the defendants, YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and YOEL DE MOYA

LO ZADA , have an interest.

Upon conviction of a violation of Title 8, United States Code, Section l 324, the

defendants shall each forfeit to the United States of America, pursuant to Title 8, United States

Code, Section 1 324(17) and Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(6):

(a) any conveyance, including any vessel, vehicle, or aircraft, used in the

com mission of such violation, or property traceable to such property;

(b) any property, real or personal, that constitutes or is derived from or is traceable

to the proceeds obtained directly or indirectly from the com mission of such

violation, or property traceable to such property; and

(c) any property, real or personal, used to facilitate or intended to be used to
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facilitate the comm ission of such violation.

All pursuant to Title 8, United States Code, Section 1324(b), Title 18, United States Code,

Section 982(a)(6), and the procedures set forth in Title 21 , United States Code, Sedion 853, as

incorporated by Title l 8, United States Code, Sedion 982(b)(1) and Title 28, United States Code,

Section 246 t(c).

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON

t & ./.- (
W IFREDO A .FERRER

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

TIM OTHY M . COLE

SPECIA L ASSISTAN T UN ITED STATES ATTORN EY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES O F AM ERICA

VS.

YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ and
YOEL DE MOYA LOZADA,

Defendants. I

Court Division'. (select One)

M iam i Key W est

FTL W PB

I do hereby certify that:

CASE NO.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTO RNEY*

Superseding Case Inform ation:

New Defendantts) Yes No
Num ber of New Defendants
Total num ber of counts

I have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the number of
probable witnesses and the legal com plexities of the Indictm ent/lnformation attached hereto.

l am aware that the information supplied on this statement will be relied upon by the Judges of this
Court in setting their calendars and scheduling crim inal trials under the mandate of the Speedy Trial
Act, Title 28 U.S.C. Section 3161 .

Interpreter: (Yes or No)
List Ianguage and/or dialect

This case will take 4-5

2 .

3. Yes
panlsh

day for the parties to try.4.

5. Please check appropriate category and type of offense listed below:

(Check only one)
0 to 5 days
6 to 10 days
1 1 to 20 days
21 to 60 days

61 days and over

I

I I

i I I
IV

V

6. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) No
If yes:
Judge: Case No.

(Attach copy of dispositive order)
Has a complaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No) No
If yes:
Magistrate Case No.
Related Miscellaneous num bers:

Defendantts) in federal custody as of
Defendantts) in state custody as of
Rule 20 from the District of

Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) No

(Check oniy one)
Petty
Minor

Misdem.

Felony

X

X

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office
prior to October 14, 2003? Yes x No

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office
prior to Septem ber 1, 2007?

Yes x No

/w '
TIMOTHY M . COLE

SPECIAL ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
Court ID No. A5501695

*penalty Sheetts) attached REV 4/8/08

8.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SH EET

Defendant's Name: YOSANDRA PIEDRA VASQUEZ

Case No:

Count #: 1

Conspiracy to Defraud the United States

Title 18, United States Code, Section 37l

*M ax. Penalty: 5 Years of lmprisonm ent

Count #: 2

Conspiracy to Encourage and lnduce an Alien to Reside Unlawfully in the United States

Title 8, United States Code, Section 1324(:)(l)(A)(v)(I)

*M ax. Penalty: 10 Years of lmprisonm ent

*Refers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole terms, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTH ERN DISTRICT O F FLO RIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: YOEL DE M OYA LOZADA

Case No:

Count #: 1

Conspiracy to Defraud the United States

Title 18, United States Code, Section 371

*M ax. Penalty: 5 Years of lm prisomnent

Count #: 2

Conspiracy to Encourage and Induce an Alien to Reside Unlawfully in the United States

Title 8, United States Code, Section 1324(a)(1)(A)(v)(1)

*M ax. Penalty: 10 Years of lmprisonm ent

*Refers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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